)L R. H. McMASTER WRITES
OF OLD FAIRFIELD COUNTY

Happy Hunting Ground of the Indians, Its White
Men Love It and Long for It When Away—Sher-
man Found It Wealthy, Aristocratic and Best Cul-
tivated of South Carolina—History of Elbow Hill,

the Colonel’s Farm.

BY FITZ HUGH [IcMASTER.

Col. Richard H. McMaster, field ar-
tillery, Reg‘ular Army, now at Omaha,
Neb., on the staff of the Corps area
commander, hag receg%g) pu?{]'llllhedtha
16-page phlet, “ w Hill, the
Annafn olf] a Farm,” which make de-
lightful reading to those who have
ever lived in Fairfield county, or who
love Southern traditions and have an
attachment for the soil,

It is the story of a farm of 472
acres which he now owns in Fairfield
county and which is the remnant o
a 2000 acre and more plantation
wgch an ancestor acquired there in
1798,

The motif ofh the pamphlet is found
in a agraph:

"W?E;r{ ge owner (Colonel McMas-
ter) was station in Columbia, he went
to the farm quite often, and occasion-
ally took his wife with him. She did
not see much uty or attraction in
the old scarred hills, She wondered
why he liked to go there so often,
She said to him one day, ‘When 1 go
there with you, you don't do any-
thing but walk around. 1 believe
when 1 am not with you, you get
down and pat the ground. She is a
New England girl, descended from
lines of mannfacturinf people, pro-
fessors, preachers, sea faring men, etc.
He could only grin and confess to
himself that he hadn't words to ex-
plain the drag and pull of the gen-
erations of association with land ang
Negroes—good or bad as it may be.

roughout the pamphlet there are
touches of fty sentiments and ex-
ressions affection for dear old
fairfield, places in it, and her peo-

le,
r Love Their Land.
begins with:
| people whom the fortunes of
have placed on the high lands
petween the Broad and Catawba rivers
have an unusual affection for their
land. They hate to leave 1it, and when
they are called away they look back
to it with lonﬁi:d(. ]

“Th uﬁrt ca Fairfleld is neither
moun nor plain, but a series of
elevated ridges, undulating hills, and
flowing vales, ing in its lower
eaches to the flat flel and swamps
which form the point of the tongue
betwen the water of the Wateree and
Congaree rivers,

“Before the advent of the Euro-
peans it was a country of forests in
which the oak predominated, and of
small prairies and valleys, with brakes
of cane. It abounded in buffalo, bear,
deer, elk, panthers, foxes and other
small game.
h."lt \;':aa 'E:eloved E'?d the L!;dgans—l

untin ou to which came

“t,zrm v m':rs tribes. From the

puth, the Congarees, the Low Country
n seking health; from the east
the whas; from the west the war-
B s e cks Yo Tt &
leasant no-man‘s
o particular tribe but enjoyed by

il
L

o
] the first settle-
on

then tells of
smum«m-um
along the Broad river,
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¢ { hunting, and were delighted to find
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y the Wateree, and o e winns ]
the hilgh nlaiddle ri‘:ir s. The people
came largely from Virginia.
anllfes and Their Seats.
“Ther brought along with them
their local traditions ‘and customs..
They called their unpretentious and
often crude farm houses ‘seats’ and
they referred to themselves as ‘coun-
iy families' They built their family
cemetery walls, with a place reserved
outside for their slaves. They brought
along Yhe English pastime of fox

a plentiful sugpl_v in their new home.
They rated their families somewhat
on the length of time they had been
established in America, and they
looked with complacent attitude to-
ward the comparatively recent Eng-
lish and French settlements on the
Carolina coast. ¢

“It took one or more generations
of living in this hunting country of
the Indians to teach the small farmer
that he could not survive. He must
expand his lands and his workers, or
sell out and move on to the _%ams
and more fertile lands, of the West,
With the turn of the &entury would
come the cotton gin and the era of
the cotton planter and the big slave
plantion.”

He tells of the establishment of the
first school for boys in the up-country.
Says he:

“The mutual needs brought together
the educational leaders of Charleston
and of the Camden district with a
view to establishing a school for boys
somewhere in the invigorating at-
maosphere of the hill country. e re-
sult was the organization of the Mount

Zion society in 1777, with headquar-
ters in Charleston, and the estab-
lishment of the Mount Zion college
in Winnshorough in 1785,

Low Country Influence.

“In education and culture this was
of far-reaching influence to Fairfield.
It brought the voung boys of Charles-
ton and vicinity te \{innshornugh.
with the resulting friendly contacts.
It brought Charlestonians to summer

homes in the hills—including General

Moultrie, fhe Vander Horsts, and
Gadsdens. Later it brought an inflow
of permanent residents from the Low
Country, among them rag;mnutwm
of the families DuBose, ight, Gail-
lard, Hanahan, (the beloved physician),
Whaley., Bacot, Campbell, DesPortes,
Thomas and Porcher. It brought the
manners and social amenities of the
Low Country, and the politeness and
love of fh}\m:rsl of thleed r&nihmpeqple
who had largely sett a on,
A{‘-o 'Ihm came In time lchools_dld@'
dﬁh——Miu Winn' ] s
school, and . O'Bear’ a
man college came for later
moved to Greenville, e railroad
came; the plantations and . slavery
ﬂoq';_ihahed; .J‘nalt 'ﬂnccumuhted.
“When the nion army  passed
through in 1865, the correspondent
of the New York Herald reported that
was a wealthy ﬂ
aristocratic town, containing much that

was dear ‘o Rebel hearts.
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“Sherman’s medical director (Sur-
geon John Moore) wrote: ‘The country
X was high and relling, with oc-
casional outcroppings of the granite
formation, a more fertile region and
hetter cultivated than any passed over
in South Carolina.”

The Devil's Elbow.

He now comes to the personal part |
of his narrative. He tells of the crook-
ed winding road to Rocky Mount, of |
it crossing Beaver Dam creek (now
Johnston's), of the elbow in the hill, §
and of the accidents and deaths there, §
and of its being named “Devil's El- §
bow.” James Barber, with his wife, §
Sarah Gunning, came here in 1798 and
bought 545 acres of land, to which §
they later added 650 acres more. His |
prayer was: “God ﬁve me hills and |
strength to climb them.” His prayer §
wag answered, and the lands remained §
in possession of his children and hisf}

children’s children, part remaining this§§

day to Colonel McMaster.

eirs succeed heirs and in 1829 Sarah
Richmond married Benjamin Boul-$
ware. “‘They lived all of their marriedf
life at their Elbow Hill place, It was}
high tide in the lifetime of this plan-§
tation, as well as in that system of}
slavery. They enjoyed all the pleas-|
ures of the regime of slavery and suf-}
fered none of the consequences. She

died in 1858 and he in 1860, It was} ing of these gentle, cultivated folk in
left for their children to suffer the 'sof[ening the frank, and fearless out-
{; spokeness of the Scotch and Scotch-
i Irish had had only beneficial effects,

deluge.”

Confederate Soldiers.

One son, Dr, James Richmond Boul- |

ware, was a Surgeon

régiment, C. S
Frank, was a private in the same regi-
ment and was captured at Trevillian
station. Sallie, the youngest, married
Richard Nott McMaster, the father of
Col. R. H. McMaster, He was a mém-
bér of Hampton's Legion in Capt.
James Macfie's company. He was
often selected for dangerous enter-

prises, “Somewhat of a dandy in dress |

| —he was fond of dancing and society; |

he became an expert horseman, fencer,
and shot, and had his fish pond, chick-
ens and dogs."”

Sherman’s army passed by Elbow
Hill, and camps were made there,
When they were gone the “big house”
had been burned with many of the
outbuildings, the great oaks were
scorched and' withered, the cattle, hogs
and chickens were killed and con-
sumed or left to rot, and desolation
reiﬂwd 'm.til stout and devoted hearts
took up the budens of life—~but the
old ways and days never came back,
(Sherman had three distinet lines of
march through Fairfield, more than
in any other county in the state, and
the width of the desolation was wider
there than elsewhere.) /

“The people of Elbow Hill attended
the old Preshyterian church (Mt
Olivet, Wateree, Presbyterian church)
up the ridge, and just across the road
from the northern end of their place.”
In the cemetery the graves of Revo-
lutionary soldiers are marked by
granite slabs and boulders, The first
inscriptions came ohly in 1790, Sue-
ceeding generations sleep there, many
of them Confederate soldiers.

The last pastor of the church, and
he was pastor for years, was Dr.
James Douglas, father of Dr. Davisoh
Douglas, the late president of the
University of South Carolina.

There is considerable genealogical
matter and personal reminiscense
which will make the pamphlet of
great value to the descendants of
those mentioned. It is a decided con-

tribution to the history of Fairfield § of

county,
Elbow Hill still retains its name. Its
owner noves from place

A o
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Edward Gendron Palmer

v Counry Pl
Influence Fairfield

of St. James, Santee, Par-

ish Went to Ridgeway in 1824—Thomas, Gaillard,
DuBose, Porcher, Courturier and Others Follow.

Vanderhorst, Drayton an

d Moultrie Owned Lands

There—Healthfulness and Mt. Zion College Drew

Them

By FITZ HUGH McMASTER.

It came as a distinct shock to me
when a meditative, well informed man
said in effect that the evil outweighed
the good done to Fairfield county by
the migration of low-country plant-
ers, principally of Huguenot descent,
in the 1830s and 1840s. The wholly ac-
cepted theory has been that the com-
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Drove Out Small Farmers. :
The general effect of the whole pol- i
icy of planting in Fairfield was to
buy out, and practically drive out,
the small white farmer, and make
living unpleasant generally for the
white man who had to work with his
hands, !
This recalls the remark of an old
lady now living, whose father had
been a tailor, patronized by the rich
| planters of Fairfield, “My father told

in the Sixth | and had made Fairfield county, in |
The other son, || some respects, distinctive in the up-

country.
The whole thing came about as a
result of a visit to “Valencia,” Ridge-

way, which had been builded about
1834 by Edward Gendron Palmer, who
was one of the first, if not the very
first, of low-country planters who

founded estates in Fairfield. Mr. Pal-
f‘n“?r owned over 6,000 acres of land and
VES.

_ A story of “Valencia” is to follow
in a later article. It is one of the love-
liest homes in the up-country—in lo-
cation, manner of building and in his-
toric and romantic associations.

But the disturbing remark of the
meditative gentleman caused a diver-
sion, and this article will deal some-
what in detail with a number of the
estates which were settled in Fair-
field by low-country planters.

Large Plantations, Many Slaves,

The meditative gentleman went on
to say that one had only to look at
the dpopulatlon statistics and physical
conditions of the county previous to
1860 to see that these low-couhtry
planters did the county no good eco-
nomically, however much good they
may have done socially and spirit-
ually.

In 1830, about when the migration
began, the population of Fairfield
county was 21,546, of which 9,705 were
whites and 11,841
(slaves). In 1860 the population was

me that Fairfield was no place for a
| poor white man. The rich white man
' would not associate with him, and he
Fcould not associate with the Negroes,

These small white farmers went to
the Southwest and helped develop
Alabama, Mississippi and Texas
to the Central West, Ohio, Indiana,
and Illinois, and “the sons and grand-
sons of the latter came back in 1860s
in blue uniforms to lick the stuffing
out of us,” said the commentor,

The meditative gentleman may not
be wholly correct, but his ebulition
makes a good story worth thinking
about.

It may be that this movement start- |
ed much earlier, as stated by Me-!
Crady, “It is a curious and interest-
ing fact in the history of South Caro-
lina that the very first instance in
which the mnames of the English
churchmen, and the Huguenots of the
coast, and of the Scotch-Irish Pres-
byterians of the upper country are
commintled is in the establishment of
a school. The Mt. Zion mem
e
an y CO ‘ Y
11:3;' :‘l.%'"’i'he school was in “Wynnes- |

ro y

5 a-nderhorsi and Drayton.

County records show that low-
countrymen owned lands in Fairfield
long before 1830. One record shows
that Arnoldus Vanderhorst and Thom-
as Wearing (Waring), executors of
John Vanderhorst, made a conveyance
to John Winn in 1789. In 1798 Minor
Winn gave a mortgage to Arnoldus
Vanderhorst.

In 1791 Stephen Dra made a
eonve}ance to Isaac Molle, and in
1‘19% ohn Winn made a conveyance
to

22111, of which 6,373 were whites—
3.332 less than 30 years before—and
the Negro population was 15738, two |
and a half times as great as the white,
making Fairfield the one black spot |
in the up-country, and ever since, ||
the third county in the state in pro- |
portion of Negro to white population, §
Besides this, soil surveys show that
denuded, washed-away lands in Fair-
d far exceed those of any other
state, and indeed, it is
i uded

county in the
the three or four worst

to place,{ aff
rt

| of 17
| both of these-

| shows a plantation, and sup

Drayton.
A plat of the streets of Winnsboro
shows one street named “Van-
derhorst” and another, “Drayton.” So
names were honored
during the early settlement of Fair-
fieldi but there is no evidence that
either lived in the county.

Also, Mills' map of Fairfield, 1826,
y a
residence of Governor Moultrie sev«
eral miles southwest of Winnsboro,
but there is no evidence of his having
lived there any length of time.

But this story began with “Valen-
- g ety Rl - fBerd
y. ¥
vm L -ﬂ three miles
o R nime. Tl and Valencla.

.




of Dr, James Dayis, “eminent physi-
cian” of his day and superintendent

of the “Lunatic Asylum™ (the inscrip-
tion on his tomb in the First Presby-
terian churchyard is worthy

of

daughter of Doctor Davis, had married
Edward Gendron P,
Sautee parish, rleston
about 1824, Doctor Davis persuaded
his son-in-law to move from the
“sickly” low-country, and buy a plan-
tation, “"Bloomingdale,” on Dutchman's
creek, several miles from “New
Lands,” as Ridgeway was then called.
But “hloomingdale' did not prove to
be healthful, so he moved, tempo-
rarily, to a house on what is now

r street, Ridgeway, and while
there, on a high hill of another plan-
tation, buailt “Valencia,” meaning
“good health,” having the same
thought of his father-in-law, Doctor
Davis who had named “Quinine Hill.”
It was at this home of his father-in-
law that his second son, John Ram-
say Davis Palmer, who afterwards be~
came a famous physician in Ridgeway,
was born July 29, 1833.

This Doctor Palmer is the ancestor
of the Palmers of Ridgeway, and of
the R. A. Meares family of Columbia.
His home was “Cedar Tree” planta-
tion, on the road to Winnsboro from
Ridgeway.

Palmer and Thomas.

Leaving the romantic story of “Va-
lencia,” for a later article, in the let-
ters and books of Edward
Palmer, accounts are had of his ef-
forts to bring other low-country folk
to Fairfield.

One of the first to follow Mr. Pal-

mer was S. Peyre Thomas of St. Ste-
phen’s parish, rleston district, who
made a home at “Valley Grove,” not
far from Ridgeway, on the waters of
Dutchman's creek.
‘ en came Dr. John P. Thomas,
| who had been a practicing physician
| in St. John's parish, In 1836 he pur-
| chased lands near Ridgeway and soon
thereafter built “Mount Hope." which
stands to this day, in Big Cedar creek
area,

From these two early settlers of
Fairfield come the families of that
name in Ridgeway, John P. Thomas.
Jr., and others in Columbia, and
Bishop Thomas and the Rev. Harold
Thomas of Charleston,

It is matural for this family to run
to ministers, as their earliest Ameri-
can ancestor, the Rev. Samuel Thom-
as, was sent to this colony in 1702 to

a missionary to the Yemassee In-
dians by the Society for the Propaga-
tion of the Gospel in Forei arts,
of the Church of England. g‘ovemor
Johnson would not let him go to the
Yemassee but retained him as his pri-
vate chaplain, when governors d
and needed, as they need now, spir-
itual advisors.

Gaillard and DuBose.

About the same time, in 1834, there
came from Pineville, St. John's parish,
Charleston district, David Gaillard,
Samuel DuBose and Theodore S. Du-
Bose. They stopped to see E. G. Pal-
mer in idgeway, but went on to
Winnsboro and soon established them-
selves on (ﬁfnt‘“m near that town.

Dayid illard called his planta-
tion, near White Oak, “Springvale.”
Later he bought another place near
Winnsboro, to which village he moved
@nd lived in a hired house for several

ears. He died in 1855 at the age of

b, leaving a widow and 11 children.

Two of his sons were killed in the
Confederate war,, one of them, Col.
Frank Gaillard, at Fredericksburg.
His monument may be seen near the
entrance to the cemetery there. It is
interesting to note that a short time
before that battle, while at home on
a furlough, Colonel Gaillard confided
to a friend that he had a Eremonition
that he was soon to be killed by a
shot throufh the head. The premoni-
tion was_fulfilled.

From David Gaillard come many
descendants, A, S. Gaillard of Colum-
bia, the late Col. D. D. Gaillard of
the Panama Canal zone and others.

Samuel DuBose owned a place near
White Oak, and so did his son, -
dore, but the names of these places
are not known. His son, Samuel,
owned the “Dov Cot,” plantation on

district,

er of St. James,

Birthplace of Dr. DuBose.

Theodore S. DuBose for a time lived
in a rented house in Winnsboro, and
here his distinguished son, Dr. Wil-
liam Porcher DuBose, was born, Aft-
erwards he lived at “Farmington,” a

lantation about eight miles from
eVimuboro. and later bought “Rose-
gd," about two miles from Winns-

ro.

Farmington subsequently passed to
Gen. John Bratton, who married the
daughter of Mr. DuBose. “Roseland”
pased into the hands of the Refo fam-
ily who lived there for a number of
vears, From these two DuBoses come
the family of that name in Columbia
and elsewhere, and Bishop Bratton of
Missisisppi, and others,

The following are quotations from
an account given her son, Cant. Henry
Gaillard, one-time state senator from
Fairfield. and clerk of the state sen-
ate, by the widow of David Gaillard,
who came from St. John's parish in
1834:

“Several families, principally wid-
ows, with their sons, came up to
Winnsboro to live in preference to
boarding them at the school, for the
advantages of health, as well as this
most excellent school. Mrs. Isabella
Porcher, with four sons and two
daughters, rented a house in Winns-
boro and settled herself in Winnsboro

until her sons had all been prepared

for college by Mr. Hudson . rs.
Sarah Couturier, with one daugh-
' ter, who married Dr. T. T. Robertson,
and two sons, the sons scholars at Mt.
Zion . . . Mrs. Mary Gaillard, widow
of Dr. Edwin Gaillard of St. Stephen’s
parish, with one son, Edwin, a sch%l)gg
at-Mt. Zion, and four daughters, O?
Mr. and Mrs. Sims uex came also.
They kept house in Winnsboro until
their deaths. Mr. Isaac Dwight, with
his wife and five children, for several
years spent their summers with T, S.
DuBose—the sons at Mr, Hutson's.
“In May, 1840, Mr. Josiah Obear, an
Episcopal clergvman from Vermont,
| who came South for his health, was
. sent by our bishop to this place, at
. the request of members of the church
settled here, there being a respectable
number of church members at that
il time. Being without a church, services
| were held in the courthouse . . ., Mr.
Obear was married in November, 1840,
in Charleston. In 1841, January, Mrs.
Obear, an accomplished lady, opened
a school for girls.” ;
The foregoing story, while not pre-
tending to cover the whole ground,
ives an idea of the extent to which
irfield came to know the influence
o; as gentle, culiured and refined peo-
Dlé as live an N 5

\
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{] From ‘“‘Geography of South Carolina,”” by William Gilmore
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Fairfield District.
Fairfield was first settled by emi-
grants from Virginia and North Caro-
{lina. It derives its name, most prob-

| ably, from the grateful appearance
' which it made,’ in theseyes of wan-

derers, weary with long looking for a
resting place. It is bounded on the
north by Chester district; on the south
by Richland; on the west and south-
west by Broad river, which divides it
from Union, Newberry and Lexing-
ton; southwest by Lexington; and on
the northwest by the Wateree and
Catawba rivers, which separate it
from a part of Lancaster and Ker-
shaw. Fairfield is, en an average, 32
miles in length, 23 in width, and con-
! tains about 471,040 square acres.

In Granite A

. With the exception of a slip of
' sandy pine land, on its southeastern
limit, Fairfield is within the granite
yegion. In its general aspect the coun-
try is much diversified, justifying its
name, lying now in level plains, ris-
ing into slopes and gentle undula-
tions, and sometimes swelling into
rugged surface and imposing moun-
tain, The soil is very various, combin-
ing the best and worst of the upper
country. The lands on the water
courses are rich and inexhaustible;
the uplands are perhaps too hilly for
safe cultivation in a season of much
rain. Cotton, of the short staple, is
much cultivated; the small grains
grow well in Fairfield; corn and
wheat in particular. Of these, with
rye, oats, barley and potatoes, the
crops are usually abundant.

e chief rivers are the Broad, or
Eswawpuddenah, which is navigable
ithe whole len of the district; as
Iso the Catawba and Wateree (which,
being one river, becomes, in dis-
trict, one in name also). Little river,
iwhich empties into the Broad, is only
ipartially navigable. It has numerous
B:anches. and is a stream of much
importance., Wateree creek, the en-
rance of which, into the Catawba,
imposes upon the latter its name, is

next considerable stream. This

ion takes place three and a half

miles above the line of Lancaster and
Kershaw. The lands on the banks
of this stream are noted for their
fertility

Site of First Settlement.

Dutchman's creek, which etmiu
into the Wateree; and Beaver, ch
empties into Broad river; are both
valuable, the one being a creek, the
other a beautiful stream, noted, also,|
as the first place of white settlement
in = the district. There are other
streams, the Suwannee, Rocky, Mor-
ris, Fox, Bear, ete., which find their
way into the Wateree. The tributaries
of the Broad, in Fairfield, are Wilkin-
son, Terrible, Rock, Gooacon and Cool
Branch. In these two main rivers, the
Broad and Wateree, are numerous
islands, all fertile and some of them
in cultivation.

The fish ‘are the shad and sturgeon,

the trout, pike, perch, eel, gar, red-
, sucker, carp, etec.

Fairfield has the finest granite for

building; soapstone, sandstone, slate-

eiss and hornblende, are oc-

. A remarkable

the road from Columbia, and

four miles from Winnshoro, is called,

trom its appearance, the Anvil rock.

| Winns

od in dyspepti cutaneous
S hdat,mnd cwi.cﬂn ten miles

of

Y Inn&boro.

{than this,

Simms; Published in Charleston in 1843.
5/.. ,‘_3 3 Fifty Installments.

The forests of Fairfield contain the
finest timber and in great variety;
among which are, the poplar, hick-

ory, walnut, pine, beech, birch, oak
(black, white and red, Spanish, post
and 'I‘urkeir!, ash, elm, linden, gum,
sugar, maple, cherry, dogwood, sassa-
fras, papaw, iron wood, cotton, cedar,
ete. e wild fruit trees are crab
apple, chinquapin, mulberry, persim-
mon, haw, hazelnut, walnut, hickory-
nut, cherry, chestnut, etc. The culti-
vateld fruit trees t..riz peach, qmnct:.
apple, pear, aprico , pomegranate,
cﬁerry. glurn. almond, etc. The shrub
{and bush fruits are strawberry, rasp-
;berry, whortleberry, gooseberry, etc.

The game are :
raccoons, opossums, squirrels, ete.
Of birds, migratory and domestic,
there are, the martin, swallow, duck,
snow bird, robin, mock-bird, cat-bird,
{ humming-bird, snipe, wood-pecker,
whippoorwill, plover, kingfisher, etc.;
jay, red-bird and sparrow; turkey,

artridge, dove, w ock, crow, owl,
ank and blackbird. The wild pigeon
occasionally appears, and sometimes
the bald eagle.

Large Slave Population.

The population of Fairfield, by the
¢.nsus of 1840, is 20,165; of these 7,660
are free; 12,505 slaves. The district is
entitled to one senator and four rep-
resentatives in the legislature. e
employments of the people are chief-
ly agricultural; domestic manufac-
tures are carried on to considerable
extent. The water courses furnish
numerous mill seats, but these works
arc chiefly used for sawing lumber,
ginning cotton, or grinding corn.

Winnsboro is the seat of justice,
and the most importance in the dis-
trict. It is a healthy and pleasant spot,
30 miles from Columbia, and 150 from
Charleston. It is placed on the divid-
ing ridge between the rivers Wateree
and Broad. A main branch of the
Waterce creek heads near the vil-
lage. This and other streams furnish
excellent springs of water. The town
stands on an elevation of more
three hundred feet above the Wateree
i river, and abouot five hundred feet
above the ocean. The lands around
are fertile, undulating and greatly im-
proved. The population is near 500.

Mount Zion College.

It has a handsome courthouse and
jail, an academy, five churches, two
or three large and elegant hotels, a
Masonic hall and market-house. Mount
Zion college was established here
prior to the Revolution, and received

|| a charter in 1777. Some of the dwell-

ings in Winnsboro are handsomely
built. In 1780, Lord Cornwallis made
this village his headquarters. The cot-
ton gins manufactured in Winnsboro
' h'avt: a high reputation throughout the
ere are some other villages in
the district. Monticello. lying between,
| Little river and Wilkinson's creek,
contains an academy, a few houses,
and unfm the center of a healthy,
rich populous neighborhood
Rocky Mouht or Grimkeville, stands|
on the Catawba river, of which it
commands a beautiful view; and
Longtown, situated on a h sand
ridge, 20 miles east of Wi ro, is
the resort of the  plapters of the
Wateree during the autumn season.
This district lies in a salubrious re-
jion. The climate is leasant and
ealthy. Fevers occur in tge fall, along
the rich bottoms and the wate
courses, but there are few portion
of the u country more y
e instances of longevity
are numMerous.
A considerate is paid to
education in Fairfleld. The academies

1 numn

oo L
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eer, turkey, foxes, B

schools receive $1,200 from the sta
annually. A decent sense of religious
duty is prevalent, and Sunday schools |
are efficiently exercised. The religious
sects are Presbyterian, Methodist,
Baptist, Episcopalian and Dutch Re-§
formed. Fairfield is prominent, in-

| deed, for its high sense of religious

and moral obligation. It has also made
some advance in literature, and there
are many excellent private libraries, i

The territory of Fairfield was once %
a part of the heritage of the Catawbas.
They received the whites kindly, and §
were affectionately true to them
through all periods.

The First “Regulator.”

Fairfield has furnished to the state
her full share of distinguished men.
Among these were Gen.
Winn, who was a prominent leader
in the Revolutionary war. Thomas
Woodward has the reputation of hav-
ing instituted the sort of forest-jus-
tice—in the absence of regular laws
and officers—which went by the name
of Re tion. He is claimed to have
been the fi tegulator
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